CALL-IN SUB COMMITTEE
MONDAY 8 JANUARY 2007
8.00 PM*
*Please note the start time of this meeting
SUB-COMMITTEE AGENDA (SCRUTINY)
COMMITTEE ROOMS 1&2,
HARROW CIVIC CENTRE

MEMBERSHIP

Chairman:

(Quorum 3)

Councillor Anthony Seymour
Councillors:

Jean Lammiman
Mark Versallion

B E Gate
Mitzi Green

Reserve Members:
1.
2.
3.
4.
5.

Jeremy Zeid
Richard Romain
Mrs Lurline Champagnie
Dinesh Solanki
Julia Merison

1.
2.
3.
4.

Jerry Miles
Graham Henson
Keeki Thammaiah
Mrinal Choudhury

Issued by the Legal Services Section,
Legal Services Department
Contact: Michelle Fernandes, Committee Administrator
Tel: 020 8424 1542 E-mail: michelle.fernandes@harrow.gov.uk
NOTE FOR THOSE ATTENDING THE MEETING:
IF YOU WISH TO DISPOSE OF THIS AGENDA, PLEASE LEAVE IT BEHIND AFTER THE MEETING.
IT WILL BE COLLECTED FOR RECYCLING.

HARROW COUNCIL
CALL-IN SUB COMMITTEE
MONDAY 8 JANUARY 2007

AGENDA - PART I
1.

Attendance by Reserve Members:
To note the attendance at this meeting of any duly appointed Reserve
Members.
Reserve Members may attend meetings:(i)
(ii)
(iii)
(iv)

2.

to take the place of an ordinary Member for whom they are a reserve;
where the ordinary Member will be absent for the whole of the
meeting; and
the meeting notes at the start of the meeting at the item ‘Reserves’ that
the Reserve Member is or will be attending as a reserve;
if a Reserve Member whose intention to attend has been noted arrives
after the commencement of the meeting, then that Reserve Member
can only act as a Member from the start of the next item of business
on the agenda after his/her arrival.

Declarations of Interest:
To receive declarations of personal or prejudicial interests, arising from
business to be transacted at this meeting, from:
(a)
(b)

all Members of the Committee, Sub Committee, Panel or Forum;
all other Members present in any part of the room or chamber.

3.

Arrangement of Agenda:
To consider whether any of the items listed on the agenda should be
considered with the press and public excluded on the grounds that it is
thought likely, in view of the nature of the business to be transacted, that
there would be disclosure of confidential information in breach of an
obligation of confidence or of exempt information as defined in Part 1 of
Schedule 12A to the Local Government Act 1972 (as amended).

4.

Minutes:
That the minutes of the meetings held on 22 August and 17 October 2006 be
taken as read and signed as correct records.
[Note: The minutes of the above meetings are published on the Council's
intranet and website].

Enc.

5.

Call-in of the Decision of the Cabinet Meeting on 14 December 2006:
Key Decision - Outcome of Statutory Consultations on Three Particular
Community Care Services: (Pages 1 - 40)
The following items relating to both the call-ins below are attached:• Report of the Director of Adult Community Care Services
• Extract from the Minutes of the Cabinet meeting held on 14 August 2006

Enc.

(a)

Decision relating to Home Care Charges:
Notice Invoking the Call-in.

Enc.

(b)

Decision relating to Wiseworks:
Notice Invoking the Call-in.

Enc.

6.

(Pages 41 - 42)

(Pages 43 - 64)

Call-in of the Decision of the Cabinet Meeting held on 14 December
2006: Key Decision - Land at Gayton Road: (Pages 65 - 68)
The following items are attached:
• Notice Invoking the Call-in
• Extract from the Minutes of the Cabinet meeting held on 14 December
2006
AGENDA - PART II

Enc.

7.

Call-in of the Decision of the Cabinet Meeting held on 14 December
2006: Key Decision - Land at Gayton Road: (Pages 69 - 94)
Joint Report of the Director of Planning Services and the Director of Lifelong
Learning and Cultural Services.

Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985: In accordance with
the Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985, this meeting is being
called with less than 5 clear working days’ notice by virtue of the special
circumstances and grounds for urgency stated below:Special Circumstances/Grounds for Urgency: Under Overview and Scrutiny
Procedure Rule 22 a meeting of the Call-in Sub-Committee must be held
within 7 clear working days of the receipt of a request for call-in. This
meeting therefore had to be arranged at very short notice and it was not
possible for the agenda to be published 5 clear working days prior to the
meeting.

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 5
Pages 1 to 40

Meeting:

Cabinet

Date:

14 December 2006

Subject:

Outcome of statutory consultations on three
particular Community Care Services
Key Decision: (Executive- Yes
side only)
Responsible Officer:
Penny Furness-Smith, Director of Adult Community
Care Services
Portfolio Holder:
Cllr Bednell – Lifelong Learning, Cultural Services
and Issues Facing Older People
Cllr Silver – Adult Community Care Services and
Issues Facing People with Special Needs
Exempt:
No
Enclosures:

Appendix 1 – Analysis of Consultation Responses –
Draft attached
Appendix 2 – Comparison of facilities at Anmer
Lodge and Milmans Day Centres – draft attached
Appendix 3 – Options to set a Cap for Home Care
Charges
Appendix 4 – Evaluation of the Consultation – draft
attached
Appendix 5 – Partial Equality Impact Assessment
on the Consultation

SECTION 1 – SUMMARY AND RECOMMENDATIONS
Summary
This report sets out the public response to the Statutory Consultations on
• The proposed merger of Anmer and Milmans Day Centres
• Proposed changes to Home Care charges
• Proposed re-provision of services currently at Wiseworks
It also sets out options for Cabinet to consider in response to the consultation
exercise.

1

Recommendations
Cabinet is requested to:
1. Agree the recommendations in sections
a. 3.4 (Anmer/Milmans)
b. 4.4 (Home Care Charges)
c. 5.4 (Wiseworks)
d. 6.3 (Direct Payments)
Reason
Cabinet agreed at its meeting of 3rd August to a 12 week consultation exercise
covering the services identified above and for the results of this consultation
exercise to be reported back to Cabinet so that it could make a decision about
the proposals concerning the future delivery of those services.
SECTION 2 - REPORT
1. Background
1.1. Cabinet, at its meeting on 16 February 2006 agreed to a proposal to
redevelop the Wiseworks Service as part of the People First Directorate
Growth and Savings Proposals. At a subsequent meeting on 3 August
2006, Cabinet agreed that a decision on the future of Wiseworks be
deferred until a 12 week public consultation exercise had been
undertaken.
1.2. At its meeting on 3 August 2006 Cabinet considered further proposals to
achieve financial savings during 2006/07. These proposals included the
proposed merger of Anmer and Milmans Day Centres, proposed changes
to Home Care Charges, and proposed changes to the Meals on Wheels
Service.
1.3. This report deals with the responses to the consultations on the proposed
merger of Anmer and Milmans Day Centres, the proposed changes to
Home Care Charges and the Proposed re-provision of services currently
at Wiseworks. A report on the outcome of the consultation on proposed
changes to the Meals on Wheels Service is due to be presented to
Cabinet at its meeting on 18 January 2007.
2. Common Responses to the Consultation
2.1. A number of comments made in responses were common to all the
consultations
• The Council is targeting the most vulnerable members of the
community.
• The Council should reduce costs in other ways, e.g. by reducing high
salaries or cutting staff number.
• The Council should raise revenue by increasing Council tax
• People should be informed about Direct Payments.

2

3. The proposed merger of Anmer and Milmans Day Centres
3.1. Number of Service Users affected by the Proposals
• 152 Service Users currently attend Milmans Day Centre with 50
attending each day. There are 55 Service Users who attend Anmer
Lodge Day Centre with 25 attending each day.
3.2. Details of the proposal set out in the consultation
•

To merge Anmer Lodge Day Care Centre in Stanmore and Milmans
Resource Centre in Pinner, so day care is provided at only one place.
These two centres provide a place for older people to receive care
whilst also being able to engage in a programme of activities and to
socialise. This service is available for older people who have been
assessed as eligible for Social Care services because they have
difficulties arising from long term difficulties. In some cases it also
provides family carers with a break.

3.3. Summary of responses to the consultation
•

Recipients of the Anmer/Milmans merger proposal were not clear
which centre would close or whether fewer places/ sessions would be
available as a result of the merger. Most respondents therefore
supported the status quo whatever their current centre because of their
positive experience with it and unhappiness about having a longer
journey. In addition, the importance of familiar surroundings and faces
was emphasised for those affected by dementia. However some
opposition to the proposal would be mitigated if people were reassured
about transport provision and the service capacity of the merged
centre.

3.4. Recommended Options for Consideration by Cabinet
•

Cabinet is recommended to proceed with the merger of the two centres
and that Milmans Day Centre be retained. A comparison of the
facilities at Anmer Lodge and Milmans Day Centres is attached at
Appendix 2.

4. Proposed changes to Home Care Charges
4.1. Number of Service Users affected by the Proposals.
• There are currently 1,563 Service Users living in 1,517 Households
who currently receive Home Care services (Snapshot taken on 10th
November 2006).
4.2. Details of the proposal set out in the consultation
•
•

Reduce the home care subsidy from £8.60 to £2.10 per hour, for those
that can afford it, setting a new hourly rate of £16.00 (up from £9.50)
Remove the existing £85 maximum assessed weekly charge (i.e. no
upper charge limit)

3

•

Change to take into account 100% disposable income when assessing
the amount to charge (previously 75%)

4.3. Summary of responses to the consultation
•

These proposals elicited the most negative views largely because of
their potential financial impact on service users. The reduction in
subsidy was perceived as a price increase and, whilst many
respondents accepted in principle the need for some increase, they
regarded the proposals as going too far too quickly. There were
concerns that elderly people would either be forced to use up all their
savings on care costs or reduce/go without care which would put them
at risk. Suggestions focussed around the need for phasing of increases
over time, retaining the maximum weekly charge and achieving
savings by other means within the Council.

4.4. Recommended Options for Consideration by Cabinet
•

Cabinet is recommended to:
o Reduce the level of subsidy to £3.10 for those assessed as
being able to afford it, setting a new hourly rate of £15.00.
o Set a new level of cap for the maximum assessed weekly
charge at £250 (from the existing £85). Appendix 3 sets out the
relevant information based on a comparator group.
o To take into account 100% of disposable income when
assessing the amount to charge.

5. The Proposed re-provision of services currently at Wiseworks
5.1. Number of Service Users affected by the proposals.
• There are currently 38 Service Users using Wiseworks.
5.2. Details of the proposal set out in the consultation
•

Two models were put forward in relation to the reprovision of services
currently provided at Wiseworks:
o Providing personal vocational advisors to develop individual
employment action plans and assist service users into
employment
o Providing a centre-based service, merging services at
Wiseworks and The Bridge Day Centre

5.3. Summary of responses to the consultation
•

Respondents indicated that the proposals were not fully understood by
all who received them. Comments favoured the retention of
Wiseworks because it worked well and could not be effectively
replaced by the proposed options, few therefore expressed a
preference for either of the options put forward in the consultation.

4

•

Mind in Harrow/Harrow User Group and Harrow Rethink submitted
alternative proposals for the delivery of services currently located at
Wiseworks.

5.4. Recommended Options for Consideration by Cabinet
•

Current services users and their carers value the security of the
building based service and the group work style of staff contact. Many
of those effected by the changes are those who are most disabled by
their mental ill-health. These people are more likely than others in the
mental health services to have difficulty in adjusting to an individual
advisory based services. In order to facilitate a sound transition
between day services and the employment services location at the
Bridge has much to commend it. The relocation of the employment
services to the to the Bridge offers a sound statutory core service.

•

Cabinet is recommended to:
o Agree the proposal to provide a centre-based service, merging
services at Wiseworks and The Bridge Day Centre. If agreed a
three month transition period would be needed to implement
any necessary changes.
o Agree that the alternative proposals put
Harrow/Harrow User Group and Harrow
considered for future services should
available to expand services beyond
functions of the local authority.

forward by Mind in
Rethink should be
resources become
the core statutory

o Agree that Officers should seek to identify a location for
Wiseworks to meet on a social basis so that they can continue
to derive benefit from the support and social interaction that
would result.
6. Direct Payments
6.1. One of the issues raised by people taking part in the consultation was
how the proposed changes to the home care charging arrangements
would be applied to people in receipt of ‘direct payments’ from the
Council.
6.2. There are a group of about 110 adult service users whose assessed need
for social care services is responded to by the Council giving a cash
payment which enables them to arrange and pay for their own care
services, in lieu of services directly provided or commissioned by the
Council. The majority of people using direct payments receive these in
place of domiciliary care services.
6.3. Recommended options for consideration by Cabinet
•

Cabinet is recommended to:
o Agree that a review of the Direct Payments Scheme be
undertaken following implementation of proposals contained

5

within this report (subject to Cabinet agreement) and for the
outcome of this review to be reported back to Cabinet.
7. Resources, costs and risks associated with the proposals
7.1. If Cabinet decides to set the hourly charge at £15 and apply a cap to the
weekly assessed charge, the estimated revenue impact is to reduce the
savings target within the savings plan by £400k per annum and by £100k
for 2006/2007. This will need to be addressed as part of the next quarters
budget monitoring for 2006/2007 and as part of the draft revenue budget
for 2007/2008.
7.2. If Cabinet agree to the proposal to merge Anmer Lodge and Milmans Day
Centres a programme of re-assessment will be necessary. Day centre
staff will need to be retained until this programme is completed. This
would result in the saving target to be reduced by 50% to approximately
£17,500 for 06/07 with a full year’s saving of £140,000 for 07/08.
7.3. There will be additional demand on capacity within the Income
Assessment Team in order to carry out a programme of re-assessments
as part of the implementation of these proposals, the extent of which is
yet to be determined.
7.4. As part of the implementation of the proposals Care Management will
monitor any adverse impact on service users especially where users
cancel a service. In addition the Partial Equality Impact assessment
recommends that a full Impact Assessment is undertaken as part of the
implementation of any of the proposals.
8. Staffing/Workforce Considerations
8.1. Any matters arising from implementation of the proposals will be
addressed through the Council’s agreed procedures for managing
organisational change.
9. Consultation
9.1. The Consultation on the three Services which are the subject of this
report followed the good practice set out in the Harrow Compact and the
Cabinet Office Codes of Practice on Consultation. The Cabinet Office
Code of Practice sets out 6 criteria:
• Consult widely throughout the process, allowing a minimum of 12
weeks for written consultation at least once during the development of
the policy.
• Be clear about what your proposals are, who may be affected, what
questions are being asked and the timescale for responses.
• Ensure that your consultation is clear, concise and widely accessible.
• Give feedback regarding the responses received and how the
consultation process influenced the policy.
• Monitor your department’s effectiveness at consultation, including
through the use of a designated consultation co-ordinator.

6

•

Ensure your consultation follows better regulation best practice,
including carrying out a Regulatory Impact Assessment if appropriate.

9.2. The consultation lasted 12 weeks and ran from 4th September to 27th
November.
9.3. The consultation pack was sent to 1,939 service users, 415 local
organisations and the 63 Councillors. Freepost envelopes were provided
to enable return of completed feedback sheets. The consultation pack
was available in different community languages and in tape format.
9.4. Press adverts were placed in the Harrow Times, Harrow Leader and the
Harrow Observer, announcing that the consultation was taking place and
subsequent adverts also provided information about the public meetings.
9.5. A number of posters were placed in libraries, and on public notice boards,
as well as in the civic centre. Copies were also sent to GP surgeries and
directly to local organisations to place on their notice boards. Subsequent
posters also provided information about the public meetings.
9.6. The Harrow Council website was used to advertise the consultation with
links to the PDF documents of each proposal, as well as copies of the
adverts, posters and information about the public meetings.
9.7. In order to encourage feedback, potential respondents were able to
choose from the following methods to express their views.
•
•
•
•

By post using a freepost address (to send back feedback sheets)
Calling the dedicated telephone consultation line (feedback sheets
were filled in by council staff)
Via email to the dedicated consultation email address
By taking part in the four public meetings

9.8. 436 individuals or organisations sent in a written or e-mailed response or
communicated their views by the direct consultation line. A further 81
individuals attended the four public meetings.
10. Equalities Impact
10.1.
A Partial Equalities Impact Assessment has been undertaken as
part of the evaluation of the consultation process. This is attached as
Appendix 5
11. Key Performance Indicators
11.1.
The following indicators will be impacted by any reduction in the
number of service users:
• Help to Live at Home (all Care Groups) indicators
• Intensive Home Care indicators

7

12. Corporate Priorities
12.1.
This report addresses the Corporate Priority of Making Harrow
Safe, Sound and Supportive.
13. Section 17 Crime and Disorder Act 1998 Considerations
13.1.
This report deals throughout with the needs of a group of adults
who are amongst the most vulnerable and at risk in Harrow.
SECTION 3 - STATUTORY OFFICER CLEARANCE
Chief Finance Officer

X Name: Paula Foulds
Date: 30 November 2006

Monitoring Officer

X Name: Helen White
Date: 4 December 2006

SECTION 4 - CONTACT DETAILS AND BACKGROUND PAPERS
Contact:
Mark Gillett
Group Manager Plus – Commissioning, Strategic Planning and Health Integration
mark.gillett@harrow.gov.uk
020 8424 1911
Background Papers:
1. Harrow Code of Practice on Consultation
2. Cabinet Office (Better Regulation Executive) – Code of Practice on
Consultation
IF APPROPRIATE, does the report include the following considerations?
1.
2.
3.

Consultation
Corporate Priorities
Manifesto Pledge Reference Number

8

YES
YES
1

Appendix 1

Consultation – Analysis of Responses
Summary
1. The majority of respondents to all four proposals were either unhappy
or very unhappy about them but the strength of feeling and the reasons
for them varied. A number of comments were generic to all the
proposals. These were:
a. The Council is targeting the most vulnerable members of the
community
b. The Council should reduce costs in other ways, e.g. by reducing
high salaries or cutting staff number
c. The Council should raise revenue by increasing Council tax
d. Inform people about Direct Payments

2. The Home Care proposals elicited the most negative views largely
because of their potential financial impact on service users. The
reduction in subsidy was perceived as a price increase and, whilst
many respondents accepted in principle the need for some increase,
they regarded the proposals as going too far too quickly. There were
concerns that elderly people would either be forced to use up all their
savings on care costs or reduce/go without care which would put them
at risk. Suggestions focussed around the need for phasing of increases
over time, retaining the maximum weekly charge and achieving savings
by other means within the Council.

3. Recipients of the Anmer/Milmans merger proposal were not clear
which centre would close or whether fewer places/ sessions would be
available as a result of the merger. Most respondents therefore
supported the status quo whatever their current centre because of their
positive experience with it and unhappiness about having a longer
journey. In addition, the importance of familiar surroundings and faces
was emphasised for those affected by dementia. However some
opposition to the proposal would be mitigated if people were reassured
about transport provision and the service capacity of the merged
centre.

4. The Wiseworks proposals were not fully understood by all who
received them. Comments favoured the retention of Wiseworks
because it worked well and could not be effectively replaced by the
proposed options.

9

Appendix 1

Methodology
Once the three community care proposals were drawn up potential
respondents were made aware the consultation was taking place by the
following.
•

•

•

•

Press adverts were placed in the Harrow Times, Harrow Leader and
the Harrow Observer, announcing that the consultation was taking
place and subsequent adverts also provides information about the
public meetings.
A number of posters were placed in libraries, and on public notice
boards, as well as in the civic centre. Copies were also sent to GP
surgeries and directly to local organisations to place on their notice
boards. Subsequent posters also provided information about the public
meetings.
The Harrow Council website was used to advertise the consultation
with links to the PDF documents of each proposal, as well as copies of
the adverts, posters and information about the public meetings.
Consultation packs were sent out to 1,939 service users, 415 local
organisations and the 63 councillors. Freepost envelopes were
provided for completed feedback sheets.

The service users were made up of:
Service Area

Number of Service Users
1655
147
56
81*

Home Care
Milmans Day Centre
Anmer Day Centre
Wiseworks

*For the purpose of the consultation the total number of service users on the
database were asked their views, this included people who had used the
service within the past 12 months but were not current users at the time. As at
30th November 2006 there were 38 regular service users at Wiseworks.
The local organisations were made up of:
Organisation
Community groups
Supporting people contractors
PCT/GP surgeries
Home care provision
Mental health partnership

Number
247
89
39
21
19

10

Appendix 1
In order to encourage feedback, potential respondents were able to choose
from the following methods to express their views.
•
•
•
•

By post using a freepost address (to send back feedback sheets)
Calling the dedicated telephone consultation line (feedback sheets
were filled in by council staff)
Via email to the dedicated consultation email address
By taking part in the four public meetings

Participant response - numbers
436 individual responses (feedback sheet, written response, telephone or
email). The following table breaks down respondents for each consultation,
please note that some respondents identified themselves as both a user and a
carer and may therefore appear twice in the table below. However the total
number of responses received is based on the number of individual forms,
emails or telephone calls received.

Service users
Carers
Organisation
Total Number of
Responses Received

Anmer /
Milmans

Home Care

Wiseworks

No.
54
23
3
66

No.
260
90
11
319

No.
32
5
13
51

81 people attended the public meetings was 81, of whom 18 were deemed to
be from a visible ethnic minority background. Participants in each public
meeting were a mix of users, carers and voluntary organisation
representatives. Other participants included union representatives, councillors
and local press.
The table overleaf provides a breakdown of respondents, who stated their
ethnic origin when responding by completing a feedback or sheet or who
called the consultation telephone line.

11

Appendix 1

Ethnic origin of respondents
(as stated on feedback
sheets)
Asian or Asian British
Bangladeshi
Asian or Asian British Indian
Asian or Asian British
Pakistani
Asian or Asian British Other
Black or Black British African
Black or Black British
Caribbean
Black or Black British Other
Chinese
Mixed White and Black African
Mixed White and Black Asian
Mixed White and Black
Caribbean
Mixed Other
White British
White Irish
White Other
Total

Anmer/

Homecare

Milmans
No.
%
No.
- 17
1
1

Wiseworks

%
No.
6.2%
1

MoW

%
No.
2.1%
-

%
-

1.7%
1.7%

17
1

6.2%
0.4%

6 12.5%
1 2.1%

-

-

-

-

9
2
2

3.3%
0.7%
0.7%

3
3
4

6.2%
6.2%
8.3%

-

-

-

-

2
1
-

0.7%
0.3%
-

1
1
1
3
1

2.1%
2.1%
2.1%
6.2%
2.1%

-

-

89.3% 207
5.6%
7
1.7% 10
100% 275

75.3%
2.5%
3.7%
100%

1 2.1%
19 39.6%
2 4.2%
1 2.1%
48 100% 141

100%

51
3
1
57

12

13

1
1

4.6%
33.3%

Very Happy
No.
%
1
1.9%
1
-

No.
5
4.6%
-

%
9.4%

Happy

8
-

36.3%
-

Don’t mind
No.
%
16
30.2%
3
1

13.6%
33.4%

Unhappy
No.
%
11
20.8%

9
1

40.9%
33.3%

Very unhappy
No.
%
20
37.7%

No. Comment
1
Respondents are unclear which centre
will be closed. Clients/relatives using
Milmans do not want move to Anmer as
they are settled and happy at Milmans
and change will disorientate people with
dementia – vice versa.

Recommendation

It is understandable that people may be If only one centre is to remain open that
worried about a possible move but care it should be Milmans
will be taken to enable individuals to
move with friends and with the support of
familiar staff wherever possible.
Milmans is the larger centre and have
better and larger facilities so it would be
the best centre to remain open

Commentary

The table below list the comments made by respondents during the consultation, this covers all of the different methods for feeding
back views (feedback sheets, dedicated telephone line, dedicated consultation email address and the public meetings).

Service users
(53)
Carers (22)
Organisation (3)

Anmer/Milmans

Respondents who completed a feedback sheet or telephoned to feedback their views stated were asked to state how they feel
about the proposals. The vast majority gave a response, and the outcomes have been listed, below.

Participant response – Anmer/Milmans

Appendix 1

14

Ensure that if there is a merger that it will
not lead to overcrowding
What was the basis for the decision?
Has there been genuine consultation
before a decision is reached?

7

8
9

If there is one centre there will be a need
for more staff

6

Concern at the impact of savings on
most vulnerable people in terms of
distress and disruption.

4

Transport will be required and the
journey may be more stressful

Concern that the merger may result in
changes to the day(s) of attendance and
cuts in the number of sessions offered to
people as compared to current
provision.

3

5

Will longer journey lead to less time at
day centre.

2
Generally not although there may be a
moderate increase in journey times for a
few people
Most people are offered one days
attendance per week and this allocation
is likely to remain the same. Currently
we have a number of vacancies in Day
Centres in Harrow which will enable us
to re-provide for people if a centre is
closed.
We are targeting our resources to the
most vulnerable and will endeavour to
keep disruption at a minimum where
services do have to change
Transport will be available and we do not
expect additional journey times to be too
great
We will keep staffing levels under review
and if more people attend a particular
service we will consider whether staffing
levels need to be adjusted
We will ensure that this does not happen
and that numbers are at safe levels
The decision has not yet been made
Yes we received more than 70
responses regarding this proposal and
the views have been incorporated into
this report
No recommendation
No recommendation

No recommendation

Transport to be provided to those who
need it in order to access their day
centre
No recommendation

No recommendation

No recommendation

No recommendation

Appendix 1

15

17

16

14
15

13

12

11

10

The financial position may mean this is
not possible
If a centre closes all service users will be
offered a re-assessment and alternative
arrangements will be made
Concern at treatment of old people who This comment is noted
have paid their dues and made sacrifices
for their country
Concerned about how much the
The figures for the current community
consultation exercise costs
care consultations will be made available
when the Meals on Wheels consultation
is completed in January 2007
Ensure same quality of care with merger The quality of care will be maintained
Elderly population will have increased
It is impossible to know exactly what
hugely by 2012. Where will the provision services will be needed in 6 years time
be for day care?
but we do keep demand for services and
the changing nature of services
requested under continuous review .We
also hold an annual review of the
services we are commissioning
Increasing Somali community and older We do provide grants to Somali
people will need specific facilities
Organisations. If the Somali or any other
community require specialist provision
we will consider this in our annual review
of commissioning priorities
It will impact negatively on carers
We will continue to provide Day care in
order to provide carers with a break

Keep both centres open – do not make
any changes
More information needed about the
implications of the proposals

As column 2

As column 2

No recommendation
No recommendation

As column 2

No recommendation

Elected members to consider when
making decisions
As column 2

Appendix 1

16

25

24

23

22

21

20

19

18

We do not currently anticipate reductions Day care is continued to be used as
in breaks for carers should the centres respite care for carers
merge as we have vacancies at most
centres
Merge greater links with voluntary sector We already link closely with the
As column 2
voluntary sector and have in Harrow 2
Older people’s day centres and a
number of social clubs funded by the
Council
Partnership with community
WE will continue to engage with
As column 2
organisations e.g. role and level of
community organisations and further
engagement in future
strengthen those ties in the future
Direct payment could be used to give
Direct payments are already available for As column 2
choice to provide support either on a one people with an eligible need for day care
to one basis or in a communal settings as an alternative to attending a day
(provide information)
centre
Particular concern was also expressed
If a centre does close, some staff will be As column 2
about existing users of Anmer and staff relocated to the centre remaining open
who provide them the service currentlyi.e. loss of continuity between staff and
current Anmer centre users
Raise Council Tax instead of proposals There is a cap of 5% on the additional
Elected members will make a decision
Council tax that can be raised each year on the level of council tax in due course
Look after older people of Harrow rather The needs of all residents are taken into As column 2
than less deserving people/services i.e. account when members determine
look at cutting services in other
financial budgets
departments
Instead of merger of Milmans and Anmer The Byron and Anjali Centres at Sancroft No recommendation

Risk of increased physical and mental
abuse due to a reduction in break for
carers

Appendix 1

17

33

32

31

Hall are run by a Voluntary organisation
rather than the council so we cannot
merge the services
We are managing out budgets as
efficiently as possible
The vast majority of people only attend a
centre one day per week already
This is being considered
This review will also be taking place
There are currently about 20 placement
vacancies at Milmans.
Future demand is kept under constant
review
As column 2
As column 2
As column 2

No recommendation

No recommendation

For the 4 day centres for older people
As column 2
the daily places will reduce from 125 to
100.We also buy some placements at
other centres on a one-off basis and this
will not change
What options will be open to those
It depends on individual circumstances As column 2
service users who do not wish to use this and needs and in each case other
resource in future?
options can be discussed with the
person concerned. This could for
example be a referral to a Voluntary
Sector Luncheon Club
Will Direct Payment option be possible? Direct payments are possible. It is
As column 2
Implications about extra travelling time estimated that journeys will not take a
for service users.
great deal longer .Additional buses will

Total number of places if a merger was
to take place?

Keep both centres open but cut the
number of days each person attends
Charge for day care services
Review/cut back operational managers
What is the demand and usage of
Milmans currently and what its likely
demand will be in future?

27

28
29
30

Manage budgets more effectively

26

consider merger with the Byron Centre
at Sancroft

Appendix 1

18

Concerned about staff who will be
displaced as a result closing one of the
sites. Issue of re-deployment/ length of
service is of concern to the Union
Will the hours of the day service be
extended beyond current time scale i.e.
beyond 5pm? Extending the hours to
respond to demand on the service and
also possible opening it over the
weekends?
Those staff who are re-located; will they There are policies in place to deal with No recommendation
get paid extra to reflect this?
this and other similar issues and they will
be applied

35

37

36

How will this impact on their use of the
centre in actual hours at the centre?

34

be made available
There should be little or no impact on the No recommendation
length of time someone attends at the
centre
Staff will be offered alternative
As column 2
employment, in some cases at the
centre that remains open. There are
some vacant posts in both centres.
Extended hours is an option that can be As column 2
considered if demand and resources
allow. Both demand and resource
availability will be kept under review

Appendix 1

19

Very Happy
No.
%
4
1.5%
1
1.1%
No.
10
3
1

Happy
%
3.8%
3.3%
9.1%

Don’t mind
No.
%
46
16.9%
12
13.2%
4
36.3%

Unhappy
No.
%
75
27.5%
23
25.3%
3
27.3%

Very unhappy
No.
%
137
50.3%
52
57.1%
3
27.3%

No. Comment
1
The rate of increase is too high, too
sudden and is not comparable to
increases in other domestic costs or in
pension levels.
2
The proposals will hit the least able in the
community and are causing great stress
to vulnerable service users and their
families.
3
Service users/carers on limited fixed
incomes will cut down on or cancel
essential support because they cannot
afford the increases. This will affect their

Recommendation

The financial needs of service users,
As column 2
carers and the council will be considered
by elected members, when decisions are
made.
The financial needs of service users,
As column 2
carers and the council will be considered
by elected members, when decisions are
made.
The financial needs of service users,
As column 2
carers and the council will be considered
by elected members, when decisions are
made.

Commentary

The table below list the comments made by respondents during the consultation, this covers all of the different methods for feeding
back views (feedback sheets, dedicated telephone line, dedicated consultation email address and the public meetings).

Service users (272)
Carers (91)
Organisation (11)

Homecare

Respondents that completed a feedback sheet or telephoned to feedback their views stated were asked to state how they feel
about the proposals. The vast majority gave a response, and the outcomes have been listed below.

Participant response – Home Care Services

Appendix 1

20

10

9

8

7

6

5

4

The financial needs of service users,
carers and the council will be considered
by elected members, when decisions are
made.
How will the proposals affect direct
The proposals will affect Direct Payment
payment users?
users in that this group of people will be
subject to the same scheme of charges
as people receiving Home Care arranged
by the Council
After years of paying their taxes and
If the proposals are adopted service uses
saving for some comforts in the later
will continue, as present, to pay for care
years, older people will be forced to use services. This may mean that some
up their savings on essential care
service users will be required to use up
savings more quickly.
We need more information to understand Each person will have a new financial
how the changes affect us.
assessment which will explain how the
changes affects them as an individual
Do not withdraw the current maximum
Covered in point 6
assessed weekly charge, as peoples
savings will quickly disappear
Is this genuine consultation. The council It is genuine consultation, we received
has already made up its mind.
almost 320 responses regarding this
proposal and the views have been
incorporated into this report
The quality of agency home care support The quality of Home care services is
is unsatisfactory and does not provide
monitored and we encourage service
value for money.
users to let us know if it falls below

quality of life and put them at risk.
Increases should be gradual over time

As column 2

As column 2

Covered in point 6

As column 2

Consider this point when decisions are
made.

No recommendation

As column 2

Appendix 1

21

17
18

16

15

14

13

12

11

acceptable standards
Proposals do not take account of hands- The council is aware and appreciate of
on and financial support already being
the support provided by families and
put in by families to maintain their
carers
relatives and the additional pressure this
will create for them.
Please clarify what circumstances have Information was sent out in the Council
led to the need for the proposals. The
Leaders letter with the consultation
Council should put its own house in
proposals
order, reduce unnecessary wastage and
expenditure.
This will hit people who have savings of Covered in point 6
just higher than £21,000 the hardest.
Elderly and vulnerable people will be
No-one can be forced into Residential
forced into residential care by the
care however sometimes when someone
increased costs when they could have
has very complex needs admission to a
been maintained in their own homes.
care home is the only safe option
available in order that 24 hour care can
be provided
Proposals reflect badly on the new
Elected Members should be aware of this
Conservative administration.
point
Bring back the old system of home help As common with council’s all home care
is provided by the independent sector
Copy the Scottish model of care
Matter for national government
Cut back on ‘non essential’ services such Elected Members have considered a
as arts and leisure, festivals, road
range of options
alteration schemes
No recommendation
As column 2

No recommendation

No recommendation

No recommendation

Covered in point 6

No recommendation

As column 2

Appendix 1

22

26

25

24

23

22

21

20

19

The proposals are outrageous. People in Covered in point 6
general accept a rise in charges but an
increase of 400% is insulting. If clients
have to pay such charges then life
savings would vanish in no time
Why is Harrow’s grant from Central
Elected members are aware of the level
Government so low?
of settlements for Harrow and
representations have been made to the
government
Why is there no maximum limit set for
Elected members are aware of this issue
charges, as other Boroughs have, like
Ealing and Barnet have a ceiling?
The consultation is very upsetting and
We accept that a limited number of
hard to understand. Figures used to
examples cannot represent all
illustrate not representative of peoples
circumstances for al service users. Only
situations.
individual assessments will provide this
information.
View that people are being asked to pay Elected members should be aware of this
for past mistakes.
issue
Reality of possible changes - people’s
Elected members are aware of this issue
health will deteriorate and need care from
Primary Care. Pressure on carer’s health
Carer may give up and put relative in
Residential care does not always cost
residential care. (Dependent on
the council more than services to help
assessment of overall care needs.) This someone to stay at home
could cost Council more in the long run?
Increase council tax instead
There is a cap of 5% on the additional
Council tax that can be raised each year

Elected members will make a decision on
the level of council tax in due course

No recommendation

No recommendation

No recommendation

No recommendation

As column 2

As column 2

Covered in point 6

Appendix 1

23

34

33

32

30
31

29

28

27

Cut staffing costs by reducing numbers or Staffing costs have, and will continue to
lowering salaries/costs of Council’s
be reduced and are kept under review.
executive directors, managers, admin
staff, and councillors.
Reduce other council costs e.g. by
Members have considered a range of
turning off street lights at midnight on
other options
weekdays, saving on mayoral car and
chauffeur, reducing subsidies to staff,
cutting expensive projects
Take action to ensure agencies providing When Home Care contracts are reviewed
care give a more cost effective service
this comment will be considered
and payments reflects actual time spent
on care
Introduce some form of local income tax National government matter
Raise the minimum savings and/or
See point 6
capital limit to more than £21,000
Everyone should contribute to his or her The Government prescribes the minimum
care costs. There should be no free
amount of money someone on a low
service provision.
income is expected to live on and we
have to follow this guidance to ensure
poorer people have sufficient money to
pay for food and amenities
Ensure support to new immigrants is not Comments noted
at the expense of long-established elderly
and vulnerable Harrow residents
Raise threshold for minimum weekly
Comments noted
income to receive free service
As column 2

As column 2

No recommendation

No recommendation
See point 6

No recommendation

As column 2

No recommendation

Appendix 1

24

44

43

42

41

40

39

38

37

35
36

Comments noted
As common with council’s all home care
is provided by the independent sector
Allocation of hours relates to assessed
need
The financial needs of service users,
carers and the council will be considered
by elected members, when decisions are
made.
Comments noted

One of the other proposals is to merge
two day services thus reducing the
amount of Harrow Council directly
provided day care available
Use private non bureaucratic care
Direct payments are available as an
workers that charge £6-£7 per hour
alternative to enable people to employ
their own support workers
Are all departments taking the right levels Comments noted
of cuts?
Cut the Members allowance to save the Comments noted
money
If decision follows in December and
Comments noted
comes active in January, it will not be
possible for families to make
new/different arrangements. New carers
cannot start without Criminal Records

Reduce councillor payments/expense
payments
Reduce day centre provision

Limit increase to cost of living index
Bring home care service in house to
avoid agency commission
Suggest to carers that some of their
clients can manage with fewer hours
This is particularly difficult when domestic
utility bills have increased so much

As column 2

As column 2

As column 2

Continue to provide

As column 2

As column 2

As column 2

No recommendation

As column 2
No recommendation

Appendix 1

25

51

50

49

Up to £1.1m

No recommendation

No recommendation

No recommendation

No recommendation

We will continue to offer and promote
See point 41
Direct Payments as an alternative. This
can be administered by the Services user
or with help from others such as family
carers. Support can be provided to
enable frailer people to manage direct
payments.
Everyone who has an Assessment or
See point 41
Review and is able to make use off a
Direct payment is offered this as an
option
Yes a Manager can review a decision
No recommendation

No, properties are taken into account
only when someone decides to go and
live in a care home
As savings diminish will people be means Yes
tested again
More/latest information is required about This information will be continually
the councils budgetary constraints
provided through the normal levels of
communication e.g. website, press,
newsletters.

Can people appeal against this decision
for assessment? (Yes, manager can
review decision)
How much money will be saved through
these proposals?
Will the value of my house be taken into
account when measuring savings?

47

48

Make people aware of direct payments /
Concern about who can manage DP’s?

46

45

Bureau check. Request for practical as
well as financial aspect to be considered
A lot of people would benefit from
changing to Direct Payment. Subsidy can
be used to contribute to care and can go
further and give more choice. It does
involve a lot of work for the carer but they
are in control.

Appendix 1

26

Very Happy
No.
%
No.
1
3.5%
-

Happy
%
-

Don’t mind
Unhappy
Very unhappy
No.
%
No.
%
No.
%
4
13.8%
8
27.5%
16
55.2%
1
20.0%
4
80.0%
1
9.1%
2
18.2%
8
72.7%

4

3

2

There are no resources for this.

No evidence is available to support his

N/a

Monitor outcomes of service users

It is accepted that only an outline was
Further work to be done following
included in the consultation
decision.
The style of service will change not level Monitor performance
of support

More information needed about the
implications of the proposals/alternatives
People like me have benefited in the past,
others in need will not benefit in the
future if there is reprovision at Wiseworks
It would cost more money if Wiseworks is
closed, as some service users may
become unwell and have to go to hospital
or will require other services
Do not close Wiseworks/expand current
services at Wiseworks

1

Recommendation

Commentary

No. Comment

The table below list the comments made by respondents during the consultation, this covers all of the different methods for feeding
back views (feedback sheets, dedicated telephone line, dedicated consultation email address and the public meetings).

Service users (29)
Carers (5)
Organisation (11)

Wiseworks

Respondents that completed a feedback sheet or telephoned to feedback their views stated were asked to state how they feel
about the proposals. The vast majority gave a response, and the outcomes have been listed, below.

Participant response – Wiseworks

Appendix 1

27

14

13

12

11

10

9

8

7

6

5

Better budgeting/monitoring at the
council is required to avoid future
problems
Wiseworks is important for self-esteem of
users
Will Bridge be able to hold all 60 users of
Wiseworks
Voluntary work will be regressive step. At
Wiseworks service users feel it is real
work
New system will need an army of staff,
because they will need to work with
individual users rather than with groups
How can justify closing it when working so
well?
Bridge can’t offer gardening and some
other activities
Already have employments centre / drop
in centres at the Bridge, which didn’t
work.
Wiseworks is not just employment – is
caring/social/ reason to getup/to
contribute/to help/health/meaning of
life/something worthwhile/encouraged to
use skills by service users (some are
skilled)
Wiseworks has been run down. Have
No new referrals are being accepted

Mental health services are capable of
offering this support form other sources

There is no clear evidence of this

accepted

Good practice to be transferred

The merge option gives the opportunity
for group work

There is provision to accommodate all
existing users of a merged service.
Wiseworks is not an employment facility

accepted

There is already council wide budget
monitoring.

The options in the consultation document

Ensure that this is address via care plans

Good practice to be transferred to new
arrangements
Support is provided to access activities off
site
Monitor performance

To be taken into account in the decision

N/a

N/a

Ensure replacement services address this

Kept under review

Appendix 1

28

22 Can other Boroughs use services at
Wiseworks and pay for them, to stop its
closure?
23 So many people not well enough. Need to
think about recovery not employment

21

20

19

18

17

16

15

This will be considered as part of the
Cabinet report
The service to be reprovided in line with
preferred option
To examined in more detail by the Local
implementation team sub group as a
future development
Not to proceed with the suggestion

That the council’s management of change
procedure is followed
Provide support to those who experience
difficulties
Plans to be put in place to achieve this

The council accepts the guidance

reflect what will be available

Other aspects of the metal health
This aspect is covered else where in
services work to this model and can meet mental health services
needs

The finances do not make this a viable
option

whilst the future is unclear and people
have moved on
DoH guidance on vocational rehab says This is guidance. 30 to 35 is the top end
that for every 100,000 people should be of figures in the guidance. Providing 2
15 places of vocational rehabilitation. So employment workers in the Community
there should be 30-35 places in Harrow. Mental health Team with a case load of
18 would deliver a service to 36 Harrow
users
What will managers/staff from Wiseworks The staff will be offered redeployment in
do? Go to the Bridge?
line with council policy
Jump to an employment advisors is huge. Some people may find this difficult.
People often cannot open the door.
Can the Bridge accommodate all the
yes
current service users from Wiseworks.
Need an impact assessment of current
There is not a statutory requirement for
service users
impact assessments.
Replacement means closure!
It is only the building not the service
which would no longer be available.
Re-provide using voluntary sector and
This an option for the future which an be
local companies
considered

decisions been made already?

Appendix 1

29

Given the cost of the building this is not
an option given current resources
The availability of an employment advisor
will assist the service user to access
relevant options
Studies should that these schemes have
a good track record in supporting service
users in accessing employment
27 Warned if Wiseworks goes to Bridge that These options will be explored
some activity classes may be cut (French,
needlework)/ Any chance part of
Wiseworks going into the Bridge which is
under used (woodwork, greenhouse,
computer rooms)
28 Will the Bridge be closed down at a later There are no plans to close the Bridge
date?

24 Should have remodelled Wiseworks,
rather than closure
25 What will the current user do in other
hours when they are not seeing
employment adviser
26 How will it improve the life of people?

The Bridge to be retained

Explore these options

Monitor performance

Monitor performance

Not to accept this suggestion

Appendix 1

This page is intentionally left blank

30

One large activity room,I small room + 2 Wheelchair
accessible WCs

One small office + External Portacabin
The Building is a part of a conversion from a
Residential Care Home.

Hairdressing Salon : As and when required
I x PC workstation in main activity room

No of Rooms available for
users

No of staff rooms
Maintenance issues

General facilities

4 small offices
Millmans was purpose built for its current functions as a
Resource Centre and opened in 2002.
Refurbishment of 1st and 2nd floors and kitchen/dining
areas to start in Jan 2007
Fully equipped Hairdressing Salon ; 5 days p w
IT Training Room with 4X PC workstations
Private ‘Surgery Rooms for visiting professionals
Mobile Shop and Tele-Care demonstration Room
Recently refurbished 2 private terraced areas with seating
with level access.
1 Manager + 1 Day Care Officer + 2 Care Assistants
Cook + Domestic support +Admin support
Staffing costs; £213,910
£540,840 overall

14 rooms including 2 large activity rooms,I meeting
Room,5 wheelchair accessible WCs

Attendance 50 per day: Total of 152 service users

Milmans

Appendix 2

Savings Target: The savings target for 06/07 is £35,000 assuming a 3 month effect from 1st January 2007. However If the decision to close
a centre goes ahead a programme of re-assessment will take place which will take from 2 to 4 weeks in total, followed by a programme of
re-providing for affected service users. Day centre staff will need to be retained until this programme is completed. This would result in the
saving target to be reduced by 50% to approximately £17,500 for 06/07 with a full year’s saving of £140,000 for 07/08.

Re-providing for Users: There are currently vacancies in Milmans , Anmer and also Byron Day Centre (provided by an Independent
Sector Organisation) to accommodate all current Service Users should Anmer be closed

Recommendation: Should members agree to proceed with the merger of the two centres it is recommended that Milmans should be
retained. This is the larger of the two centres, has far better facilities and double the capacity . There is also a programme of refurbishment
underway. It will also enable the release of the Anmer Lodge site for potential redevelopment.

Annual Budget

Staff teams

Outdoor area facilities

Fenced off semi-private terraced area with seating with
level access
1 Manager + 2 Day Care Officers + 3 Care Assistants
Cook + Domestic support + Admin support
Staffing costs; £113,830
£226,780 overall

Attendance 25 per day : Total of 55 service users

Anmer

Comparison of facilities at Anmer Lodge and Milmans Day Centres

Square Metres of DC
No of S. Users

31

This page is intentionally left blank

32

Appendix 3
Options to set a Cap for Home Care Charges
In view of the strength of views expressed by users, carers and other
stakeholders with regard to the proposal relating to removing the cap for
Home Care Charges members may like to consider the approach adopted by
some of our London Council neighbours.
Comparison of Harrow’s current charging policy with 6 London
Boroughs
Local Borough
Hourly Charge
Harrow (Current £9.50
Position)
Borough A
£13.10
Borough B

Borough C
Borough D
Borough E
Borough F

Cap on maximum charge
£85

No cap up to full cost of
care package
£5.30 if savings less than No cap up to full cost of the
£21,000
care package
£14.50 if savings greater
than £21,000
£12.10
No cap up to full cost of the
care package
£12.08
£158
£15.00
£250
£11.50
£220

The table above shows that three Boroughs do not apply a cap, with three
applying a cap ranging from £158 to £250. If Members are minded to apply a
cap to the assessed weekly charge this would suggest that the cap should be
set at £250, with an hourly charge of £15. The estimated revenue impact of
applying a cap at this level is to reduce the savings target within the savings
plan by £400k per annum and by £100k for 2006/2007.

33

This page is intentionally left blank

34

35

Ensure that your consultation
is clear, concise and widely
accessible.

Be clear about what your
proposals are, who may be
affected, what questions are
being
asked
and
the
timescale for responses.

Criterion
Consult widely throughout
the process, allowing a
minimum of 12 weeks for
written consultation at least
once during the development
of the policy.

2,400 consultation packs were sent out to individual
service users, voluntary, community and faith groups
as well as Partner Organisation and Elected Members.
The consultation document was made available in
different community languages as well as tape format
and was available for download from the internet. In
addition posters were distributed via libraries and GP
surgeries and other relevant settings. There was

Commentary
A full 12 weeks was allowed for the consultation
process, although this meant that timescales were
constrained at the beginning and end of the
consultation period in order to meet the deadlines to
submit a report to Cabinet. Advocacy groups were
briefed on the consultation on the Friday before the
consultation formally commenced.
The consultation documents followed a standard
format and attempted to provide information in a way
which made them clear and understandable and would
facilitate analysis. It is recognised that in so doing the
documents may not have provided sufficient
background to the proposals, and some criticism to this
effect was raised in consultation responses. It is also
clear that some people wanted to know about the
impact of proposals on them individually which the
consultation process could not provide.
The consultation documents were made as clear and
concise as they could be, although this may have
elicited some criticism as described above.
See above

A greater lead-in time identified above
would allow a wider reference group to be
consulted about the clarity, style and
format of the consultation documents
which should ensure greater clarity about
the proposals.

Action
There needs to be a greater lead-in time
for future consultations to allow more time
for preparation and the potential
involvement of partners and stakeholders
in contributing to the development of the
consultation proposals and processes.

Evaluation of Consultation against the Cabinet Office Code of Practice on Consultation

Appendix 4

36

extensive coverage in the press. Four Public Meetings
were held in different location and at different times of
the day.
Give feedback regarding the A summary of the responses received has been The Cabinet report and appendices will be
responses received and how produced as part of the report to Cabinet on the available on the internet. As part of the
the consultation process outcome of the consultation process
implementation of any Cabinet decision
influenced the policy.
relating to these proposals, consideration
will need to be given as to how this will be
communicated to service users
Monitor your department’s A designated consultation coordinator was assigned to A consultation co-ordinator should be
effectiveness at consultation, the four consultations impacting on Community Care assigned to all future consultations.
including through the use of Services.
Consideration should be given to
a designated consultation codeveloping a training programme for all
ordinator.
This evaluation of the consultation process has been those
involved
in
developing
included as part of the report to Cabinet
consultations.
Consideration needs to be given as to
how
future
consultations
will
be
resourced. There are actual costs
attached to producing and disseminating
information as well as opportunity costs
attached to the involvement of staff
Ensure your consultation Although this consultation concerned proposed The partial Equality Impact Assessment
follows better regulation best changes to policy rather than the introduction of recommends that carrying out of impact
practice, including carrying Regulations a partial Equality Impact Assessment on assessments on each of the service areas
out a Regulatory Impact the consultation process has been carried out which is as part of the implementation of any
Assessment if appropriate.
included in the report to Cabinet.
Cabinet decision.

Appendix 4

37

People
First

Section

1. In what areas are there
concerns, that the policy could
have a differential impact (please
tick)
2. What are the concerns that the
policy could have a differential
impact on relevant groups. Please
explain (continue on a separate
piece of paper if necessary)
3. What existing evidence (either
presumed or otherwise) do you
have for this? (continue on a
separate piece of paper if
necessary)
4. What are the risks associated
with the policy in relation to
differential impact
5 Please state clearly the
expected benefits of the policy
6. Which experts/relevant groups
did you approach to explore their
views on the issues

Name of the policy to be
assessed

Directorate

iii. Disability √
viii. Offending past

iv. Age √
ix. Transgendered
or transsexual

v. Sexual orientation

New proposed policy for current services

Is this a new or
existing policy

28th November 2006

Date of the
assessment

Peter Singh/
Vijay Malik

Yes

√

No

7. Please list the
relevant
groups/experts

Reduced overall costs and more streamlined services
Number of local organisations and individuals from
the voluntary sector, community and local groups
and from Health e.g. HAD, HRCE, Mencap, MIND,
etc

Contained in point 2 i.e. possible reduction in services, adverse impact on grounds of age, disability and
race.

Consultation feedback see methodology in the report ‘Consultation – Analysis of Responses’

This includes – likely higher costs and other financial implications for service users and carers i.e. possible
reduction of services; may adversely effect people with dementia and other vulnerable groups; potential
changes in the quality or length of care available; implications of demand for alternative services; impact on
carers; impact on current staff and future recruitment costs

Person
responsible for
the
assessment
Community Care
Consultation –
Your Views Matter
i. Race √
ii. Gender √
vi.Religious vii.Dependents
Belief

Strategy

Partial Equality Impact Assessment of the Consultation

Appendix 5

38

10. Please explain in detail the
views of the relevant
groups/experts on the issues
involved (continue on a separate
piece of paper if necessary)
11. Taking into account the views
of the relevant groups/experts,
and the available evidence, please
state clearly the risks associated
with the policy (continue on a
separate piece of paper if
necessary)
Yes No
12. As a result of this
assessment is a Full
√
Impact Assessment
necessary?

8. How was the views of these
groups obtained? (please tick)

13. Date on which the
Full Assessment is to be
started

To be undertaken as
part of the
implementation of any
proposals agreed by
Cabinet

14. Date on which the
Full Assessment
should be completed

To be undertaken as
part of the
implementation of any
proposals agreed by
Cabinet

It is recommended that a full impact assessment is carried out for each service once a decision has been
made on the proposals considered by cabinet.

Risks need to be fully assessed by means of individual full impact assessments for the services.

Within the 12 week consultation period between 4th
9. Please list the
Letter
√
September to 27th November.
date when each
√
Meetings
group/expert was
Interviews
contacted
√
Telephone
Workshops
Fora
Questionnaires √
Other
Contained in the Cabinet Report dated 14th December

Appendix 5

VOL. 7 CB 64

EXTRACT FROM MINUTES OF CABINET
MEETING HELD ON 14 DECEMBER 2006
Chairman:

* Councillor Chris Mote

Councillors:

*
*
*
*
*

David Ashton
Marilyn Ashton
Mrs Camilla Bath
Miss Christine Bednell
Mrs Kinnear

*
*
*
*

Janet Mote
Paul Osborn
Mrs Anjana Patel
Eric Silver

* Denotes Member present
138.

Key Decision - Outcome of Statutory Consultations on Three Particular
Community Care Services:
The Portfolio Holder for Adult Community Services and Issues Facing People with
Special Needs introduced the report, which set out the public response to the statutory
consultation on the proposed merger of Anmer Lodge Day Centre and Milmans
Resource Centre, proposed changes to Home Care charges, the proposed reprovision
of services currently at Wiseworks and proposed a review of the Direct Payments
Scheme. He outlined each of the consultation exercises and the recommendations
arising.
The Portfolio Holder for Lifelong Learning, Cultural Services and Issues facing Older
People stated that the consultation processes had been time consuming but
informative and she paid tribute to the carers, users and officers. She added that
modifications to the proposals had been made in response to the consultation
exercises.
RESOLVED: That (1) Anmer Lodge Day Care Centre in Stanmore and Milmans
Resource Centre in Pinner be merged and that Milmans Day Centre be retained;
(2) in relation to Home Care charges
(i)

the level of subsidy be reduced to £3.10 for those assessed as being able to
afford it, setting a new hourly rate of £15.00;

(ii)

a new level of cap for the maximum assessed weekly charge be set at £250
(from the existing £85);

(iii)

that 100% of disposable income be taken into account when assessing the
amount to charge;

(3) in relation to Wiseworks,
(i)

that the proposal to provide a centre-based service, merging services at
Wiseworks and the Bridge Day Centre and to be based at the Bridge, be
agreed, with up to a three month transition period to implement any necessary
changes;

(ii)

the alternative arrangements put forward by MIND in Harrow/Harrow User
Group and Harrow Rethink be considered for future services should resources
become available to expand the services beyond the core statutory functions of
the local authority;

(iii)

officers seek to identify a location for Wiseworks to meet on a social basis so
that they could continue to derive benefit from support and social interaction
that would result;

(4) a review of the Direct Payment Scheme be undertaken following implementation of
proposals contained within the report of the Director of Adult Community Care Services
and that the outcome of that review be reported back to Cabinet.
Reason for Decision: Cabinet had agreed at its meeting on 3 August 2006 to a
twelve week consultation exercise covering these services and for the results of this
consultation exercise to be reported back so that Members could make a decision
about the proposals concerning the future delivery of these services.

39

This page is intentionally left blank

40

Agenda Item 5a
Pages 41 to 42

41

This page is intentionally left blank

42

Agenda Item 5b
Pages 43 to 64

43

44

45

46

47

48

49

50

51

52

53

54

55

56

57

58

59

60

61

62

63

64

Agenda Item 6
Pages 65 to 68

65

66

VOL. 7 CB 64

EXTRACT FROM MINUTES OF CABINET
MEETING HELD ON 14 DECEMBER 2006
Chairman:

* Councillor Chris Mote

Councillors:

*
*
*
*
*

David Ashton
Marilyn Ashton
Mrs Camilla Bath
Miss Christine Bednell
Mrs Kinnear

*
*
*
*

Janet Mote
Paul Osborn
Mrs Anjana Patel
Eric Silver

* Denotes Member present
152.

Key Decision - Land at Gayton Road:
Members received a confidential report of the Director of Planning Services in relation
to land at Gayton Road.
RESOLVED: That it be agreed, in principle, to dispose of the land in the Gayton Road
to Fairview Homes Limited in order to facilitate the provision of a library/performing
arts/exhibition centre and replacement car park and that officers be authorised to
negotiate terms.
Reason for Decision: To enable officers to negotiate terms for the disposal of land in
Gayton Road.
(See also Minute 130).

67

This page is intentionally left blank

68

Agenda Item 7
Pages 69 to 94

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

69

This page is intentionally left blank

72

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

73

This page is intentionally left blank

94

